

SCHEDULES

FIRST SCHEDULE

Section 1.

PROVISIONS AS TO THE RED DEER COMMISSION

Constitution of the Commission

- 1 The Commission shall be a body corporate and shall have a common seal.
- 2 Every member of the Commission shall hold and vacate office in accordance with the terms of the instrument under which he is appointed, but notwithstanding anything in such an instrument any member of the Commission may resign his office by a notice given under his hand to the Secretary of State, and a member of the Commission who ceases to hold office shall be eligible for reappointment to the Commission.
- 3 Part II of the First Schedule to the House of Commons Disqualification Act, 1957 (which specifies certain commissions, tribunals and other bodies, all members of which are disqualified under that Act), shall have effect, in its application to the House of Commons of the Parliament of the United Kingdom, as if after the entry relating to the Pig Industry Development Authority there were inserted the following entry:—
“The Red Deer Commission”.
- 4 The Secretary of State shall pay—
 - (a) to the Chairman of the Commission such remuneration and such allowances, and
 - (b) to the other members of the Commission such allowances as he may with the approval of the Treasury determine.
- 5 The Commission may pay to the members of any panel appointed in pursuance of section two of this Act the like allowances as are payable by the Secretary of State to members of the Commission under the last foregoing paragraph.

Meetings and Proceedings of the Commission

- 6 The quorum of the Commission shall be five or such larger number as the Commission may from time to time determine.
- 7 The proceedings of the Commission shall not be invalidated by any vacancy in the membership of the Commission or by any defect in the appointment of any member thereof.
- 8 If at any meeting of the Commission the votes are equally divided on any question, the person acting as chairman of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote.
- 9 Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Schedule, the Commission shall have power to regulate their own procedure and that of any panel appointed by them.

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

Office, Officers and Servants

- 10 The Commission shall have an office at which communications and notices will be received.
- 11 The Secretary of State may provide the services of such officers and servants as the Commission may require.

Instruments executed or issued by the Commission

- 12 The application of the seal of the Commission to any document shall be attested by at least one member of the Commission and by the person for the time being acting as secretary of the Commission.
- 13 Every document purporting to be an instrument issued by the Commission and to be sealed and attested as aforesaid or to be duly signed on behalf of the Commission shall be received in evidence and shall be deemed to be such an instrument without further proof unless the contrary is shown.

SECOND SCHEDULE

Section 7.

PROVISIONS AS TO CONTROL SCHEMES

PART I

Procedure for making control schemes

- 1 Where the Commission decide to make a control scheme they shall—
- (a) serve on every owner and every occupier of land on whom the scheme proposes to impose any requirement a copy of the said scheme, together with a notice stating that any such owner or occupier may, within twenty-eight days of the service of the notice, object to the Secretary of State in such manner as may be specified in the notice to the scheme or to any provision contained therein; and
 - (b) in two successive weeks publish in the Edinburgh Gazette and in one or more newspapers circulating in the district in which the control area is situated a notice stating that a control scheme has been prepared, describing the said area, naming a place within the district where a copy of the said scheme and of the map referred to therein may be inspected at all reasonable hours, and stating that any person may, within twenty-eight days of the first publication of such notice, object to the Secretary of State in such a manner as may be specified in the notice to the said scheme or to any provision contained therein.
- 2 If no objection is duly made under the last foregoing paragraph or if all objections so made are withdrawn, the Secretary of State may confirm the control scheme either in the form submitted to him or, subject to paragraph 4 of this Schedule, with modifications.
- 3 If any objection duly made as aforesaid is not withdrawn, the Secretary of State shall, before deciding whether to confirm the control scheme, cause a public inquiry to be held, and after considering the objection and the report of the person who held

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

the inquiry may confirm the scheme either in the form submitted to him or, subject to paragraph 4 of this Schedule, with modifications.

- 4 The control scheme shall not be confirmed with any modification unless either—
- (a) every person served with a copy of the scheme by virtue of paragraph 1 of this Schedule has been served with notice of the proposal to make the modification and any other person on whom the modification, if made, would impose a requirement, has been served with a notice of the proposal to make the modification along with a copy of the said scheme, and either has consented thereto or has not, before the expiry of fourteen days from the service of the notice, notified the Secretary of State in writing that he objects thereto ; or
 - (b) the modification arises from representations made at an inquiry held under paragraph 3 of this Schedule or from the findings or recommendations of the person holding that inquiry, and every person in respect of whom the modification, if made, would vary or impose a requirement has been served with a copy of the scheme as aforesaid and been afforded an opportunity to appear and be heard at the inquiry.

PART II

Procedure for varying or revoking control schemes

5 On the application of the Commission, the Secretary of State may make a scheme varying a control scheme or may revoke a control scheme.

6 Before making any such variation or revocation the Secretary of State shall—

- (a) serve on every owner and every occupier of land on whom the control scheme has imposed any requirement or would, if varied as proposed, impose any requirement, a draft of the scheme varying the control scheme or, as the case may be, an intimation of the proposed revocation together with a notice stating that any such owner or occupier may, within twenty-eight days of the service of the draft scheme or the intimation, as the case may be, object to the Secretary of State in such a manner as may be specified in the notice to the variation or revocation of the control scheme ; and
- (b) in two successive weeks publish in the Edinburgh Gazette and in one or more newspapers circulating in the district in which the control area is situated a notice stating that the control scheme is to be varied or revoked and that any person may, within twenty-eight days of the first publication of such notice, object in such manner as may be specified in the notice to the making of the variation or revocation, and in the case of any such variation naming a place within the district where a copy of the scheme as proposed to be varied and any map referred to therein may be inspected at all reasonable hours.

7 If no objection is duly made under the foregoing paragraph or if all objections so made are withdrawn, the Secretary of State may vary or revoke the control scheme, as the case may be.

8 If any objection duly made as aforesaid is not withdrawn, the Secretary of State shall, before deciding whether to make the variation or revocation as the case may be, cause a public inquiry to be held, and after considering the objection and the

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

report of the person who held the inquiry may make the variation, either in the form of the draft or with modifications, or the revocation, as the case may be.

- 9 A variation of a control scheme shall not be made with any modification unless either—
- (a) every person served with a copy of the draft scheme by virtue of paragraph 6 of this Schedule has been served with notice of the proposal to make the modification and any other person on whom the modification, if made, would impose a requirement has been served with a notice of the proposal to make the modification along with a copy of the said draft scheme, and either has consented thereto or has not, before the expiry of fourteen days from the service of the notice, notified the Secretary of State in writing that he objects thereto ; or
 - (b) the modification arises from representations made at an inquiry held under the last foregoing paragraph or from the findings or recommendations of the person holding that inquiry, and every person in respect of whom the modification, if made, would vary or impose a requirement has been served with a copy of the draft scheme as aforesaid and been afforded an opportunity to appear and be heard at the inquiry.

PART III

General Procedural Provisions

- 10 Notwithstanding anything in paragraphs 3 or 8 of this Schedule, the Secretary of State may require any person who has made an objection to state in writing the grounds thereof, and may disregard the objection for the purposes of this Schedule if he is satisfied that the objection is frivolous.
- 11 The provisions of subsections (2) to (9) of section three hundred and fifty-five of the Local Government (Scotland) Act, 1947 (which relate to the holding of local inquiries) shall apply in relation to a public local inquiry held under paragraph 3 or 8 of this Schedule as they apply in relation to local inquiries held under the said section three hundred and fifty-five.

PART IV

Provisions as to the validity of control schemes and of variations or revocations of such schemes

- 12 On confirming a control scheme or on varying or revoking such a scheme the Secretary of State shall forthwith—
- (a) serve on every person on whom a notice was required to be served under sub-paragraph (a) of paragraph 1 or under sub-paragraph (a) of paragraph 4 of this Schedule or, as the case may be, sub-paragraph (a) of paragraph 6 or under sub-paragraph (a) of paragraph 9 of this Schedule a notice stating that the scheme has been confirmed or, as the case may be, that a variation or revocation of such a scheme has been made ;
 - (b) publish in the Edinburgh Gazette and in one or more newspapers circulating in the district in which the control area is situated a notice stating that the scheme has been confirmed or varied or revoked, as the case may be, and

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

naming a place within the district where a copy of the scheme or, as the case may be, the scheme as varied, and of any maps referred to therein, may be inspected at all reasonable hours.

- 13 If any person aggrieved by a control scheme or by any variation or revocation thereof desires to question its validity on the ground that it is not within the powers of this Act or that any requirement of this Act has not been complied with, he may, within six_ weeks from the date of the first publication of the notice referred to in sub-paragraph (b) of the last foregoing paragraph, make an application for the purpose to the Court of Session, and if any such application is duly made the Court, if satisfied that the scheme or any variation or revocation thereof is not within the powers of this Act or that the interests of the applicant have been substantially prejudiced by a failure to comply with any requirement of this Act, may quash the scheme or any variation or revocation thereof, either generally or in so far as it affects the applicant; but except as aforesaid the scheme or any variation or revocation thereof shall not at any time be questioned in any proceedings whatsoever.

THIRD SCHEDULE

Section 36.

ENACTMENTS REPEALED

Session and Chapter	Short Title	Extent of Repeal
2 & 3 Will. 4. c. 68.	The Game (Scotland) Act, 1832.	In section one, the words "deer roe" id both places where these words occur; in section four the word " deer "
11 & 12 Geo. 6. c. 45.	The Agriculture (Scotland) Act, 1948.	Sections thirty-nine, forty, forty-one, and forty-two so far as relating to red deer; in section forty-three, subsection (2); sections forty-four, forty-five, forty-six and forty-seven.

TABLE OF STATUTES REFERRED TO IN THIS ACT

Short Title	Session and Chapter
Criminal Procedure (Scotland) Act, 1887	50 & 51 Vict. c. 35.
Interpretation Act, 1889	52 & 53 Vict. c. 63.
Firearms Act, 1937	1 Edw. 8 & 1 Geo. 6. c. 12.
Local Government (Scotland) Act, 1947	10 & 11 Geo. 6. c. 43.
Transport Act, 1947	10 & 11 Geo. 6. c. 49.
Agriculture (Scotland) Act, 1948	11 & 12 Geo. 6. c. 45.
Summary Jurisdiction (Scotland) Act, 1954	2 & 3 Eliz. 2. c. 48.

Status: This is the original version (as it was originally enacted).

Short Title	Session and Chapter
Crofters (Scotland) Act, 1955	3 & 4 Eliz. 2. c. 21.
House of Commons Disqualification Act, 1957	5 & 6 Eliz. 2. c. 20.